# **Constitution of the Euramerican National Assembly**

# www.euramerican.org 1 January 2021

#### **Preamble to the Constitution**

We, the Euramerican Nation, in Order to form a more perfect Union, establish Justice, insure domestic Tranquility, provide for the common defence, promote the general Welfare, and secure the Blessings of Liberty to ourselves and our Posterity, do ordain and establish this Constitution for the Euramerican National Assembly.

#### **Article I - The Nation**

1.1 We are the Euramerican Nation, with our roots in our European heritage, now in America, seeking national unity, prosperity and self-determination for ourselves among the nations of mankind. The Euramerican Nation affirms its inalienable, indefeasible, and sovereign right to choose its own form of government, to determine its relations with other nations, and to develop its political, economic and cultural life in accordance with the natural rights of mankind.

# Article II - Identity and Symbolism

- 2.1 The organization shall be known as the Euramerican National Assembly.
- 2.2 The name may be represented in shortened form as ENA.
- 2.3 The flag of the Euramerican National Assembly shall be as expressed in the ENA Flag Standards (Appendix D).

#### Article III - Purpose

- 3.1 The ENA organizes, advocates for, defends and promotes the Euramerican nation, its rights and interests. It does this by organizing the social, cultural and political institutions of our people and guiding and directing national action for the national good.
- 3.2 The basic principles of the Euramerican National Assembly are embodied in the Euramerican National Resolution (Appendix A).
- 3.3 The organization's duration shall be perpetual.

# **Article IV - Membership**

- 4.1 Each member has the obligation to fight for and promote the ideas of the ENA and for the defense of the Euramerican nation.
- 4.2 Membership in the Euramerican National Assembly is open to men and women of primarily European descent with primary residence in North America who are 14 years of age or over and who pledge their support to the principles of the organization as stated in the Euramerican National Resolution (Appendix A) and to abiding by the Code of Conduct for Euramerican National Assembly Members (Appendix B). The National Assembly Pledge is contained in Appendix C.
- 4.3 The National Assembly may establish further conditions for membership.

4.4 Dues for membership shall be set by the Board of Directors prior to each dues payment cycle.

# **Article V - The National Assembly**

- 5.1 The National Assembly is the highest governing body of the Euramerican Nation.
- 5.2 The National Assembly shall meet at least annually but may be called to assemble as it deems necessary.
- 5.3 The National Assembly shall meet within one month of a call of the National Assembly by a majority of the State Assemblies registered with the standing National Assembly leadership.
- 5.4 The National Assembly is composed of the delegates from the State Assemblies.
- 5.5 The delegates shall be composed of the Chair of each State Assembly plus two other members elected by the members of each State Assembly.
- 5.6 The duties of the National Assembly are:
  - 1. Vote for the National Assembly Leadership
  - 2. Appoint membership for and receive reports from the Board of Directors and committees
  - 3. Vote for the Board of Directors,
  - 4. Vote on the National Platform to inform and guide the Board of Directors,
  - 5. Establish regulations necessary for the common good and defense of the Euramerican Nation by amending the ENA Bylaws.
- 5.7 The first Order of Business of the National Assembly shall be the election of the new National Assembly Chair, Secretary and Treasurer who shall conduct the business of the National Assembly.
- 5.8 The National Assembly Leadership shall organize and host the National Assembly. They shall hold office until the results of the election at the next National Assembly shall be binding.
- 5.9 Robert's Rules of Order shall be the discipline for conducting business at the National Assembly.

# **Article VI - Board of Directors**

- 6.1 The Board of Directors fulfills the role of the cabinet in a parliamentary system.
- 6.2 The Board of Directors shall consist of the following positions staffed by members of the Euramerican National Assembly:
  - 1. Chairmanship
    - a) Ensures that the organization abides by its bylaws and established policies.
    - b) Presides over all meetings of the Board of Directors.
    - c) Supports the Chief Executive Officer
    - d) Prepares agendas for all meetings of the Board of Directors
  - 2. Vice-Chairman
    - a) Peforms the responsibilities of the Chairman during his or her absence or disability.
    - b) Accedes to the Chairmanship in the event that a permanent vacancy in that position arises.
    - c) Familiarizes themself with the responsibilities of the Chairman and Board of Directors.
    - d) Assists the Chairman as necessary.

- 3. Secretary
  - a) Is the custodian of the records of the Euramerican National Assembly.
  - b) Oversees minutes of all meetings and teleconferences of the Board of Directors.
  - c) Within 30 days after a meeting, provides the Board of Directors members with minutes of the Board of Directors meetings, including motions made and the voting results.
  - d) Manages membership records.
- 4. Treasurer
  - a) Oversees the fiscal affairs of the Euramerican National Assembly.
  - b) Presents an annual budget for the organization, developed in concert with the Board of Directors.
  - c) Monitors budgetary performance of the organization, recommending modifications as needed.
  - d) Reviews for approval all actions and policies with major financial implications.
- 5. other members elected by the National Assembly.
- 6.3 The Board of Directors shall have no more than a total of 9 members.
- 6.4 The Board of Directors meets quarterly.
- 6.5 The Board of Directors is responsible for conducting the business and affairs of the Euramerican National Assembly between sessions of the National Assembly. Such responsibilities include:
  - 1. Providing for the clear interpretation, proper application, continuing pertinance and for the continuing integrity of the Bylaws with this Constitution and the principles defined in the Euramerican National Resolution.
  - 2. Formulating and promoting statements of public policy, which are consistent with the Euramerican National Assembly principles.
  - 3. Providing for the raising, budgeting, dispersing and accounting of the monies for the operation of the Euramerican National Assembly.
  - 4. Providing for the ongoing Euramerican National Assembly public relations and outreach efforts.
  - 5. Providing for the keeping, filing and archival storage of the official books, records and list of the Euramerican National Assembly.
  - 6. Staffing and budgeting for the Euramerican National Assembly standing committees.
  - 7. Acceptance and expulsion of members in accordance with this constitution and the bylaws.
  - 8. Assisting State Assembly organizations in the building and running of their organizations, planning, and member eduation.
  - 9. All other actions appropriate or necessary to carry out the provisions of this Constitution and the Bylaws.
  - 10. All other actions appropriate or necessary to carry on the successful operation of the Euramerican National Assembly.

#### **Article VII - The Executive Committee**

7.1 The Executive Committee is managed by the Chief Executive Officer, who is appointed by the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer shall staff their own committee.

7.2 The Executive Committee conducts the day-to-day business and affairs of the Euramerican National Assembly between meetings of the National Committee. Its responsibilities include:

- 1. Coordinating the efforts of the standing committees and the special committees so as to maximize efficiency, maximize resources, maximize effect and fulfill the purposes of the Euramerican National Assembly.
- 2. Providing for such organizational, administrative and finanacial support required for the operation of the Euramerican National Assembly.
- 3. Providing for such organizational, administrative and finanacial resources required to fulfill the purpose of the Euramerican National Assembly.
- 4. All actions appropriate or necessary to carry out the provisions of this Constitution, Bylaws and the directives of the Board of Directors.
- 5. All actions appropriate or necessary to carry on the successful operation of the Euramerican National Assembly.

#### Article VIII - The Judicial Committee

8.1 The Judicial Committee shall be composed of seven ENA members appointed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors. A Chairman of the Judicial Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors Chair. The Chairman of the Judicial Committee and any four shall constitute a quorum. The Judicial Committee shall take office immediately upon close of the National Assembly at which appointed and shall serve until the final adjournment of the next National Assembly.

- 8.2 The Judicial Committee will preside over all issues brought before it by the Board of Directors. Its primary function is to decide on:
  - 1. Violations by members of the Code of Conduct, principles of the organization or its bylaws.
  - 2. Violations of their charter by affiliate organizations.
  - 3. Acceptability of new members should the issue be in question.
- 8.3 The Judicial Committee may hear and decide issues brought before it by members.
- 8.4 The Judicial Committee has no enforcement powers, enforcement being authorized to the Executive Committee, though it may recommend original and standardized disciplinary measures.
- 8.5 The Judicial Committee will decide on the acceptability of members in accordance with a just, consistent body of rules.

# **Article IX - Special Committees**

9.1 Other Special Committees may be chartered by the Chairs of the National Assembly, Board of Directors and Standing Committees to serve their needs. The budgeting and duration of these committees dependent upon the budgets and duration of the respective chairs.

# **Article X - Affiliate Organizations**

10.1 The Board of Directors may charter affiliate organizations, setting forth whatever requirements it deems necessary for the ENA's and affiliate organization's well-being and service to the Euramerican nation.

10.2 Members of affiliate organizations do not automatically become members of the Euramerican National Assembly. In order to become members, they must fulfill all standard requirements and apply for Euramerican National Assembly membership.

#### **Article XI - Bylaws**

- 11.1 There shall be Euramerican National Assembly Bylaws
- 11.2 The Bylaws shall be consistent with the provisions of this Constitution and the Euramerican National Resolution.
- 11.3 The Bylaws shall be amended by a resolution of the National Assembly.

#### **APPENDIX A - The Euramerican National Resolution**

Whereas a free prosperous united American nation composed of free European peoples once had sovereignty and freedom; and

whereas that nation once lived in a state representing our interests above all else but which is now corrupted and inimical to our ethno-national interests; and

whereas the ethno-national name "American" has been taken from us by that state, and given to many many foreign peoples colonized among us; and

whereas that state now imposes all manner of unlivable conditions, hostile to our ethno-national and other rights and interests; and

whereas that state now seeks our dissolution among many foreign peoples, violates our rights, suppresses our identity, and treats us unequally among other ethno-national groups; and

whereas the many foreign peoples imposed on us now express hatred, hostility, and disrespect against our ethno-national rights and expression; and

whereas we are a free and independent people, with full rights to self-determination, distinguishing ourselves from the many other peoples, seeking to maintain our own national identity, national existence, in a society that embraces and represents our unique identity, heritage and destiny; and

whereas in order to maintain what we know is a more perfect Union, establish Justice, insure domestic Tranquility, provide for the common defence, promote the general Welfare, and secure the Blessings of Liberty to ourselves and our Posterity; now therefore be it

Resolved, we shall now and forever call ourselves the Euramerican nation. Euramerican is a single word, uniting people of European heritage living in the North American continent; be it further

Resolved, we shall now be guided by the White Nationalism Doctrine, specifically:

White Nationalism is the doctrine that we Whites have natural and human rights. It is a doctrine of identity, existence, and freedom. It is not a doctrine of superiority, supremacy or dominance.

Among the many rights we hold are:

we have the right to ethnicity we have the right to nationality

we have the right to our culture we have the right to national self-determination we have the right to self-government

be it further

Resolved, we proclaim that we need our own leadership and governance to articulate, express, and guide the interests of our nation; be it further

Resolved, we shall organize ourselves into a national community seeking to protect, maintain and promote our national identity, community and interests; be it further

Resolved, we establish the Euramerican National Assembly to articulate, protect, organize for and promote our national rights and interests.

APPENDIX B - Code of Conduct for Euramerican National Assembly Members

APPENDIX C - The Euramerican National Assembly Pledge

**APPENDIX D - ENA Flag Standards** 

**APPENDIX E - Bylaws of the Euramerican National Assembly**